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CANADA 
 

 
1 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Key Statistics: 

 
Land mass 9,220,970 square kilometres  
EEZ/land ratio 0.4 
Coastline 243,792 kilometres  
Population in 2002 (approximately)  32,000,000 
Population density (approximately) 3 persons per square kilometre 
Gross National Income per capita (2000) $US 21 050 
 

Other facts: Canada is the second largest country in the world after Russia, and has the longest 
coastline of any country. 
 
2 ACTIONS WITH REGARD TO THE LAW OF THE SEA CONVENTION 
 
Canada became party to the United Nations Convention on the Law of the Sea on 7 December 2003.  
  
Canada claims the following zones of jurisdiction which are consistent with the Convention: 
-- territorial sea: 12 nm (nautical mile) from baselines; 
-- contiguous zone: 24 nm from baselines; 
-- exclusive economic zone: 200 nm from baselines; 
-- continental shelf: 200 nm from baselines or to the edge of the continental margin, which ever is 
greater.  
  
Canada's EEZ and territorial sea area covers 3.1 million square kilometres. 
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Canada shares maritime boundaries with the United States, France and Denmark. 
  
Canada has resolved three maritime boundary disputes to date: i) the Gulf of Maine boundary between 
Canada and the US, settled by the International Court of Justice in 1984; ii) the boundary between 
Canada and France around the Islands of St. Pierre and Miquelon settled by Third Party Arbitration in 
1992; and iii) the continental shelf between Canada and Denmark determined by a 1973 treaty. 
  
Canada has four remaining maritime boundary disputes with the United States: Dixon Entrance, the 
Strait of Juan de Fuca, the Beaufort Sea and Machias Seal Island. The last is both a maritime boundary 
dispute and the only remaining land sovereignty dispute between Canada and the United States. 
 
3 MARINE INDUSTRIES INFORMATION 
 
The major marine-based industries in Canada include fishing, marine tourism, mining and oil.  
 
In 2000 Canadian marine and ocean industries generated $C22.7 billion of Gross Domestic Product, 
accounted for 1.48 per cent of total GDP and created 152,440 full time jobs. In 2000 employment in 
fishing industries was about 48,000. In 2000 the gross value of fisheries output was $C4.048 billion, 
while fisheries imports were $C 2.10 billion and the value of exports was $C4.08 billion.  
 
4 OCEAN RELATED LEGISLATION 
 
Key Ocean Management Related Legislation  
 

Legislation Description 
Oceans Act 1997 This Act establishes a legal demarcation of Canada’s maritime zones,  

including a Territorial Sea, a Contiguous Zone  and an EEZ. The Act 
establishes certain obligations for the Minister of Fisheries and Oceans with 
respect to the management and conservation of Canadian waters and outlines 
the powers, duties and functions of the Minister of Fisheries and Oceans. The 
Act also outlines the authorities for the creation of an Oceans Management 
Strategy. 

Navigable Waters 
Protection Act 

This Act covers approval for the construction of works in or around navigable 
waters, controls dumping and obstacles in the waters, regulates ferries and the 
operation of swing and draw bridges. 

Fisheries Act This Act is designed to administer Canadian fisheries. The Act also provides 
for the conservation and protection of freshwater and marine habitats that are 
essential to Canada's commercial, recreational and Aboriginal fisheries. 

Coastal Fisheries 
Protection Act 

This Act regulates the entry and activities of foreign fishing vessels in 
Canadian fisheries waters through the issue of licenses and permits. The main 
objective of this Act is to protect coastal fisheries. 

Canada Oil and Gas 
Operations Act 

This Act seeks to promote safety, environmental protection, conservation of oil 
and gas resources, and joint production arrangements. The Act is jointly 
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administered by the Ministers of Natural Resources and Indian and Northern 
Affairs. 

Canadian Petroleum 
Resources Act 

This Act regulates interests in petroleum in relation to frontier lands, amends 
the Oil and Gas Production and Conservation Act and repeals the Canada Oil 
and Gas Act. The Act requires that every proprietor with petroleum interests in 
frontier lands must pay into an environmental studies research fund on a per 
hectare basis. 

Resources and 
Technical Surveys 
Act 

This Act addresses resources and technical surveys which include amongst 
others, hydrographic (some of which have been transferred to the newer 
Oceans Act), hydrological, geological, geo-technical and oceanographic 
surveys. The act also sets out the Minister for the Environment's powers, 
functions and duties in respect of such surveys and related activities. 

Canadian 
Environmental 
Protection Act 

This Act contributes to sustainable development through pollution prevention 
and protects the environment, human life and health from the risks associated 
with toxic substances. 

Canada Marine Act This Act deals with matters related to maritime trade and transport and 
establishes Port Authorities. Other objectives of the Act are to divest the 
federal government of certain harbours and ports and provides a high level of 
safety and environmental protection. 

Canada Shipping 
Act 

This Act regulates all shipping in Canadian waters, and all ships registered in 
Canada. It adopts the International Convention for the Prevention of Pollution 
of the Sea by Oil. It prohibits pollution of Canadian waters by any ships in that 
water, and provides for unlimited liability, without proof of fault, for 
discharges or escapes of pollutants. 

Arctic Waters 
Pollution Prevention 
Act 

This Act is designed to prevent the pollution of waters adjacent to the 
mainland and islands of the Canadian arctic. 

 
5 LEAD AGENCIES FOR OCEANS GOVERNANCE 
 
(1) Departments/Ministries 
 

Agency Ocean Related Function 
Department of 
Fisheries and Oceans 
(DFO) 
www.dfo-
mpo.gc.ca/index.htm 

The DFO was established under the Government Organisations Act 1979 as 
the federal agency responsible for the overall management of Canadian 
oceans and ocean-related resources and issues. It is responsible, in 
consultation with other agencies, for the development of a national oceans 
management strategy. The DFO’s objectives include managing and protecting 
fishery resources and marine and freshwater environments, understanding 
ocean and aquatic resources, maintaining maritime safety and facilitating 
marine trade, commerce and ocean development.  Through the Canadian 
Coast Guard, it also contributes to maintaining the security of Canada’s 
coastal waters. 

Transport Canada Transport Canada's mandate includes developing policies, regulations and 
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www.transport.ca standards to protect the safety, security and efficiency of Canada's rail, 
marine, road and air transportation systems. Transport Canada also deals with 
the transportation of dangerous goods and sustainable development. 

Department of 
Foreign Affairs and 
International Trade 
www.dfait-
maeci.gc.ca/ 

This department has the lead role for co-ordinating federal policy related to 
sovereignty, including sovereignty over Canada’s territorial sea and sovereign 
rights with respect to the natural resources of the EEZ and the continental 
shelf. The Department, in consultation with other interested government 
agencies, in particular the Department of Fisheries and Oceans, reviews 
foreign requests to conduct marine scientific research in offshore areas under 
Canadian jurisdiction. 

Environment Canada 
www.ec.gc.ca 
 
 

Environment Canada’s mandate covers a range of issues. These include 
preservation and enhancement of environmental quality, renewable resources 
(including water, migratory birds and other non- domestic flora and fauna), 
meteorology, enforcement of the Canadian laws,  US International Joint 
Commission, and the coordination of federal environmental policies and 
programs. 

Natural Resources 
Canada (NRCan) 
www.nrcan.gc.ca/ 

This department specializes in the sustainable development and use of 
Canada’s natural resources, energy, minerals and metals, forests and earth 
sciences. NRCAN, deals with natural resource issues of national and 
international significance. 

  
 
(2) Statutory Bodies 
 

Agency Ocean Related Function 
Canadian 
Environmental 
Assessment Agency 
www.ceaa.gc.ca 

The Canadian Environmental Assessment Agency is responsible for 
promoting environmental assessment as a planning tool to protect and 
maintain a healthy environment. The Agency operates independently of all 
federal departments and agencies and reports directly to the Minister for the 
Environment. The Canadian Environmental Assessment Act 1995 forms the 
basis of Canadian environmental assessment process. The Act and its 
regulations seek to ensure that the environmental impacts of federal projects 
and activities are carefully considered early in the project’s planning stages. 

Canadian 
Transportation 
Agency 
www.cta-otc.gc.ca 

The Canadian Transportation Agency was formed under the Canada 
Transportation Act 1996 with the mandate to operate as an independent 
quasi-judicial tribunal. The Agency’s functions include acting as an economic 
regulator and an aeronautical authority, facilitating accessible air, rail and 
marine transportation, and serve as a dispute resolution authority over certain 
complaints concerning transportation rates and services. 

Transportation Safety 
Board (TSB) 
www.tsb.gc.ca 

The Transportation Safety Board is an independent agency. Its role is to 
strengthen transportation safety through the investigation of transportation 
accidents and related incidents in marine, pipeline, rail and aviation transport 
systems. The board reports to Parliament through the President of the Queen's 
Privy Council for Canada and is separate from the other government agencies 
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and departments. This independence is considered a key element in the 
Board’s capacity to act as an objective investigator and reporter of incidents 
in the Canadian transportation system. 

 
(3) Coordinating Bodies 
 

Agency Ocean Related Function 
The DFO Ministers 
Advisory Council on 
Oceans (MACO) 
http://www.maco-
ccom.ca/dir/about_e.h
tml 

The Minister's Advisory Council on Oceans assists the Minister of Fisheries 
and Oceans Canada in providing leadership in sustainable and integrated 
oceans governance. The Council provides independent advice, identifying 
challenges, and inspiring awareness and involvement by Canadians. 

 

Canadian Marine 
Advisory Council 
(CMAC) 
www.tc.gc.ca/cmac/c
macmain.htm 

CMAC is a forum consisting of commercial shippers, fishers, recreational 
boaters, unions, other levels of government and federal departments. The 
CMAC consults with its stakeholders on safety, navigation, and marine 
pollution. 

Fisheries Resource 
Conservation Council 
(FRCC) 
 

The FRCC was created as a partnership between scientific and academic 
expertise, and all sectors of the fishing industry. The FRCC makes public 
recommendations to the Minister of Fisheries and Oceans on various fisheries 
issues including total allowable catches (TACs) and other conservation 
measures for the Atlantic fishery. The Council consists of 15 members, 
appointed by the Minister of Fisheries and Oceans, with an appropriate balance 
between 'science' and 'industry'. Members are chosen on merit and standing in 
the community, and not as representatives of organizations, areas or interests. 

Pacific Fisheries 
Resource 
Conservation Council 

The Conservation Council was created as an independent organization to 
advise the governments of Canada and British Columbia, as well as the 
Canadian public, on the conservation and environmental sustainability of 
Pacific salmon stocks and their freshwater and ocean habitat. 

The Commissioner 
for Aquaculture 

The Office of the Commissioner is charged with identifying an appropriate 
federal role in aquaculture taking into account the Federal Aquaculture 
Development Strategy, current federal policies and budget orientations, and 
the needs of the sector and considering ideas regarding how the federal 
government should be organized to deliver this mandate efficiently and 
effectively. 

 
6 OCEANS GOVERNANCE POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 

Policy Description 
Canada’s Oceans 
Strategy 
www.cos-
soc.gc.ca/doc/public

This is one of the key measures being developed under the Oceans Act 1997. It 
is based on the principles of sustainable development, the integrated 
management of activities in estuaries, coastal and marine waters, and the 
precautionary approach. 
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ations_e.asp 
Canadian 
Biodiversity Strategy 
www.cbin.ec.gc.ca/D
ocument/CBs_e.pdf 

The Canadian Biodiversity Strategy was developed in 1995 as part of 
Canada’s commitment to the Convention on Biological Diversity (CBD). The 
Canadian Strategy is based on the same principles as those espoused in the 
CBD. 

National Programme 
of Action for the 
Protection of the 
Marine Environment 
from Land-based 
Activities (NPA) 

Canada is currently in the process of developing NPA as part of is 
commitment to the Global Programme. The NPA is intended to provide a 
means of developing, implementing and reporting on actions to protect the 
marine environment. 
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